
 

For information relating to this meeting or to request a copy in another format or 
language please contact: 

Amanda Coote, Town Hall, Castle Circus, Torquay, TQ1 3DR  
(01803) 207026 

Email: governance.support@torbay.gov.uk 

www.torbay.gov.uk  

(1) 

 

Friday, 24 March 2017 
 

POLICY DEVELOPMENT AND DECISION GROUP  
(JOINT COMMISSIONING TEAM) 

 

A meeting of Policy Development and Decision Group  
(Joint Commissioning Team) will be held on 

 
Monday, 3 April 2017 

 
commencing at 2.00 pm 

 
The meeting will be held in the Meadfoot Room, Town Hall, Castle Circus, 

Torquay, TQ1 3DR 
 
 

Members of the Committee 

Mayor Oliver  

 

Councillor Amil 

Councillor Excell 

Councillor Haddock 

Councillor King 

 

Councillor Manning 

Councillor Mills 

Mayor Oliver 

Councillor Parrott 

 

 

 

A prosperous and healthy Torbay 



(2) 

POLICY DEVELOPMENT AND DECISION GROUP (JOINT 
COMMISSIONING TEAM) 

AGENDA 
 
1.   Apologies  
 To receive any apologies for absence. 

 
2.   Minutes (Pages 4 - 9) 
 To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of this meeting held on 

21 February 2017. 
 

3.   Declarations of Interest 
 

 

(a)   To receive declarations of non pecuniary interests in respect of 
items on this agenda 

 

 For reference: Having declared their non pecuniary interest 
members may remain in the meeting and speak and, vote on the 
matter in question. A completed disclosure of interests form should 
be returned to the Clerk before the conclusion of the meeting. 
 

(b)   To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect 
of items on this agenda 

 

 For reference: Where a Member has a disclosable pecuniary 
interest he/she must leave the meeting during consideration of the 
item. However, the Member may remain in the meeting to make 
representations, answer questions or give evidence if the public 
have a right to do so, but having done so the Member must then 
immediately leave the meeting, may not vote and must not 
improperly seek to influence the outcome of the matter. A 
completed disclosure of interests form should be returned to the 
Clerk before the conclusion of the meeting. 
 
(Please Note: If Members and Officers wish to seek advice on any 
potential interests they may have, they should contact Governance 
Support or Legal Services prior to the meeting.) 
 

4.   Urgent Items  
 To consider any other items the Chairman decides are urgent. 

 
5.   Market Place Positioning (Pages 10 - 11) 
 To note the submitted report. 

 
6.   Personal Social Services Survey of Adult Carers in England 

2015-16 
(Pages 12 - 32) 

 To receive a presentation and note the report on the above. 
 

7.   Annual Report of the Corporate Parenting Operational Group (To Follow) 
 To receive the annual report of the Corporate Parenting Operational 

Group. 
 
 



(3) 

8.   Annual Children Looked After (Performance) and Sufficiency 
Strategy 

(To Follow) 

 To consider a report on the above. 
 

9.   Sustainability and Transformation Programme Memorandum of 
Understanding 

(To Follow) 

 To note a report on the above. 
 

10.   Children's Services Improvement Plan - Six Monthly Update (To Follow) 
 To note the Children’s Services Improvement Plan. 

 



 
 

Minutes of the Policy Development and Decision Group  
(Joint Commissioning Team) 

 
21 February 2017 

 
-: Present :- 

 
Mayor Oliver  

 

Councillors Amil, Haddock, King, Manning, Mills and Parrott 
 

(Also in attendance: Councillors Brooks, Cunningham, Lewis, Stringer and Stubley) 

 

 
24. Apologies  

 
An apology for absence was received from Councillor Excell. 
 

25. Minutes  
 
The minutes of the Policy Development and Decision Group held on 23 January 
2017 were confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 

26. Private Fostering and Adoption Overview Report  
 
The Director of Children’s Services presented the submitted report which updated 
members on two areas of social care activity – private fostering and adoption.  The 
Director of Children’s Services explained circumstances where private fostering 
takes place within Torbay and that work to improve the Council’s monitoring and 
oversight arrangements for private fostering would continue as part of the 
improvement work now underway to address the outcome of the Ofsted 
inspection.   
 
The Director then went on to outline the annual report for adoption activity from 1 
April 2015 to 31 March 2016.  It was noted that there wasn’t any Councillor 
representation on the Adoption Panel. 
 
The Policy Development and Decision Group (Joint Commissioning Team) made 
the following recommendation to the Mayor:   
 

(i) that a Councillor be appointed to sit on the Adoption Panel; 
 
(ii) that the report be noted;  
 
(iii) that the Policy Development and Decision Group (Joint Commissioning 

Team) receive updates on private fostering and adoption activity. 
 

Page 4

Agenda Item 2



Policy Development and Decision Group (Joint Commissioning Team)  Tuesday, 21 February 2017 
 

 

The Mayor considered the recommendation of the Policy Development and 
Decision Group (Joint Commissioning Team) set out above at the meeting and the 
record of decision, together with further information is attached to these Minutes. 
 

27. Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) Strategy 2016-20  
 
The Group considered the submitted report which set out a vision for how local 
services would develop in order to improve outcomes for the most vulnerable 
young people.  The Head of Education and Learning advised members of the 
assessment process and professionals who evaluate the need for an Education, 
Health and Care Plans.  The Head of Education and Learning went on to explain 
the support available if an applicant did not meet the threshold for the Care Plan, 
but required an element of additional support. 
 
The Policy Development and Decision Group (Joint Commissioning Team) made 
the following recommendation to the Mayor:   
 

That the SEND Strategy 2016/20 attached at Appendix 1 be approved and 
that the Director of Children’s Services, in consultation with the Executive 
Member and key stakeholders, be authorised to make any final changes to 
the Strategy and provide regular updates on progress. 
 

The Mayor considered the recommendation of the Policy Development and 
Decision Group (Joint Commissioning Team) set out above at the meeting and the 
record of decision, together with further information is attached to these Minutes. 
 
 
 
 

Chairman 

Page 5



 

 

Record of Decisions 
 

Private Fostering and Adoption Overview Report 
 
 

Decision Taker 
 
The Mayor at the Policy Development and Decision Group (Joint Commissioning Team) held 
on 21 February 2017 
 
Decision 
 
(i) That a Councillor be appointed to sit on the Adoption Panel; 

 
(ii) that the report be noted; and 
 
(iii) that the Policy Development and Decision Group (Joint Commissioning Team) receive 

updates on private fostering and adoption activity. 
 
Reason for the Decision 
 
To update members on two areas of social care activity – private fostering and adoption. 
 
Implementation 
 
The decision will come into force and may be implemented on 10 March 2017 unless the call-in 
procedure is triggered (as set out in Standing Orders in relation to Overview and Scrutiny). 
 
Information 
 
The submitted report updated members on two areas of social care activity – private fostering 
and adoption.  The Director of Children’s Services explained circumstances where private 
fostering takes place within Torbay and that work to improve the Council’s monitoring and 
oversight arrangements for private fostering would continue as part of the improvement work 
now underway to address the outcome of the Ofsted inspection.   
 
The Director then went on to outline the annual report for adoption activity from 1 April 2015 to 
31 March 2016.  At the meeting it was noted that there wasn’t any Councillor representation on 
the Adoption Panel. 
 
Alternative Options considered and rejected at the time of the decision 
 
None 
 
Is this a Key Decision? 
 
No  
 
Does the call-in procedure apply? 
 
Yes 
 

Page 3

Minute Item 26

Page 6



 

 

 

 
Declarations of interest (including details of any relevant dispensations issued by the 
Standards Committee) 
 
None 
 
Published 
 
2 March 2017 
 

 
 
Signed: _________________________ Date:  _______________ 
           Mayor of Torbay 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 4Page 7



 

 

Record of Decisions 
 

Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) Strategy 2016-20 
 
 

Decision Taker 
 
The Mayor at the Policy Development and Decision Group (Joint Commissioning Team) held 
on 21 February 2017 
 
Decision 
 
That the Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) Strategy 2016-20 set out in the 
submitted report be approved and that the Director of Children’s Services, in consultation with 
the Executive Lead for Adults and Children’s Services and key stakeholders, be authorised to 
make any final changes to the Strategy and provide regular updates on progress. 
 
Reason for the Decision 
 
To ensure the requirements of The Children and Families Act 2014 are being met. 
 
Implementation 
 
The decision will come into force and may be implemented on 10 March 2017 unless the call-in 
procedure is triggered (as set out in Standing Orders in relation to Overview and Scrutiny). 
 
Information 
 
The Children and Families Act 2014 introduced the most significant changes in policy for 
children with special educational needs and disabilities (SEND) for over 3 years and aimed to 
provide simpler, improved and more consistent help for children, young people and families.  
The new system extends the rights and protections to children and young people by introducing 
streamlined, integrated education, health and care plans, extending provision from birth to 25 
years of age and strengthening co-production principles. 
 
The revised Special Educational Needs & Disability (SEND) Strategy 2016 – 2020 sets out a 
vision for how local services will develop, within a significantly changed operating landscape, in 
order to improve outcomes for some of our most vulnerable young people.  A copy of the 
strategy and associated action plan is attached at Appendix 1 to the submitted report.  The 
action plan will be populated in partnership with local area stakeholders in order to ensure a 
consistent and shared approach towards delivery and service improvement. 
 
Alternative Options considered and rejected at the time of the decision 
 
None 
 
Is this a Key Decision? 
 
No  
 
Does the call-in procedure apply? 
 
Yes 

Page 5

Minute Item 27

Page 8



 

 

 

 
Declarations of interest (including details of any relevant dispensations issued by the 
Standards Committee) 
 
None 
 
Published 
 
2 March 2017 
 

 
 
Signed: _________________________ Date:  _______________ 
           Mayor of Torbay 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 6Page 9



 

 

 

 

 
Title: Market Place Positioning 

 

Wards Affected: ALL 
 
To: Joint Commissioning Team Policy 

Development and Decision Group 
On:  3 April 2017 

    
Contact Officer: Fran Mason, Head of Partnerships, People, Partnership and 

Housing 
 

 Telephone: 01803 208424 
 

  E.mail: fran.mason@torbay.gov.uk 
 

 
 

1. Key points and Summary 

1.1 This briefing follows on from previous member briefings about a series of 
actions intended to develop a sustainable independent sector market for 
social care and support for Torbay.  

1.2 One of the actions is to take a revised approach to the Market Position 
Statement (MPS), aligning with the approaches of adjacent authorities, as 
detailed in the Corporate Plan and the Wider Devon Sustainability and 
Transformation Plan. 

1.3 Torbay Council is developing a web-based MPS for 2016 to 2019, aimed at 
adult social care and support providers. One of the aims of the MPS is to 
raise awareness with providers of the up-coming changes likely in the local 
health and care system, given the New Model of Care that is being 
developed.  

1.4 The website area is being built at the moment and the text has already been 
signed off by key Executive staff in Torbay Council, the South Devon and 
Torbay Clinical Commissioning Group and the Torbay and South Devon 
NHS Foundation Trust. Colleagues in Devon County Council have also been 
kept appraised of the work we are doing and we are aligning with their 
approach as much as possible.  

 
2. Introduction 
 

2.1 A Market Position Statement (MPS) is a document produced by local 
authorities, taking into account the views of providers, people who use 
services and other partners, and aimed at a wide range of care and support 
providers – both current and potential – which summarises supply and 
demand in a local authority area and signals business opportunities within 
the care and support market in that area.  

Page 10

Agenda Item 5

mailto:fran.mason@torbay.gov.uk
http://www.torbay.gov.uk/council/policies/corporate/corporate-plan/
http://www.southdevonandtorbayccg.nhs.uk/about-us/sustainability-and-transformation-plan/Pages/default.aspx
http://www.southdevonandtorbayccg.nhs.uk/about-us/sustainability-and-transformation-plan/Pages/default.aspx


 

 
2.2 The main audience for the document is providers.  
 
2.3 The previous MPS (currently on the council’s website) is a 60 page 

document, with a 30 page appendix. It is for one year and, although very 
informative, it is long. 

 
3. Scope 

 
3.1 As noted above the audience for the next Torbay MPS is mainly adult social 

care and support providers in Torbay, or providers that would like to move 
into the area. However, adult social care and support providers are part of a 
broader integrated health and social care system and Torbay Council and 
NHS commissioners in Torbay have been working since 2005 to closely 
integrate services. As a result we will reference our local and regional work 
with the local CCG and others. The MPS also takes account of, and 
references, Torbay Council’s wider strategic commissioning role and 
wellbeing duties including, public health, housing, children’s services, 
community safety and planning. 

 

4. Update 

4.1 We have agreed to make the next MPS web-based so that it can develop 
over time and change as our commissioning intentions develop.  

4.2 We are aligning our approach with Devon County Council as much as 
possible, as they are taking a similar web-based approach. 

 
4.3 A summary of feedback from the providers consulted in summer 2016, and 

from a Provider Reference Group set up as a task and finish group to consult 
about the MPS, is as follows: 

 

 Make the document shorter – ‘it’s too long we don’t have time to read it’; 

 Use plain English, ‘stop using jargon’; 

 Make it web-based with links to other sites elsewhere to make it shorter 
and easier to access; and 

 Link to the Knowledge and Intelligence Team website, holding the Joint 
Strategic Needs Assessment and other information.  

 Ensure user and carers are mentioned early on in the web pages and 
there are links to user and care pages 

 
4.4 The website area will be a development of the already existing care provider 

area on the Torbay Council site.  
 
5. Recommendation 

 
5.1 That the report be noted. 
 
Fran Mason 
Head of Partnerships, People & Housing Torbay Council 

Page 11

http://www.torbay.gov.uk/health-and-wellbeing/care-providers-information/
http://www.torbay.gov.uk/health-and-wellbeing/care-providers-information/


 

 

 

 

 
 

Title:  Personal Social Services Survey of Adult Carers in England 2015-16 
  

Wards Affected: All Wards in Torbay 

  

To: Joint Commissioning Team Policy Development and 
Decision Group 

 

   
Contact Officer: Caroline Taylor, 
 Telephone: 01803 208949 
  E.mail: caroline.taylor@torbay.gov.uk 
 

 
 
1. Key points and Summary 
 
1.1 The Personal Social Services Survey of Adult Carers in England 2015 -16 is a 

biennial statutory survey, coordinated by the Health and Social Care Information 
Centre which aims to collect information about carers’ experiences of social care 
service and support and will feed into the monitoring of the National Carers 
strategy. 

 
2. Introduction 
 
2.1 The presentation provides a summary of the key findings compared to last 

survey that was undertaken in 2014/15. 
 
3. Recommendation  
 
3.1 That the report be noted. 
 
 
 
 
Caroline Taylor 
Director – Adult Services 
 

 
 
 
Background Papers: 
The following documents/files were used to compile this report:  
Personal Social Services survey of Adult Carers in England 2015-16 Consultation 
Report January 2017. 

Page 12

Agenda Item 6

tel:01803%20208949


1 
 

   

 
 
 
 
 
 

Personal Social Services 
Survey of Adult Carers in 

England 2015-16 
 

Consultation Report 
 

January 2017 
 
 

 
 

Method 

 
Number of 

questionnaires 
returned 

 

Completion 
rate 

Paper 373 99.7% 

Telephone 1 0.3% 

Total returned  374 100% 

Non returns 405 - 

 
 

Data was collected between October & November 2016. 
 
 

Policy, Performance and Review Team 
Torbay Council 

Consultation@Torbay.gov.uk 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1



2 
 

Contents 
 
Introduction 3 

Summary of results 4 

Section 1: About the person you care for 6 

Section 2: About your needs and experiences of support 8 

Section 3: The impact of caring and your quality of life 9 

Section 4: Information and advice quality 12 

Section 5: Arrangement of support and services in the last 12 months 15 

Section 6: About yourself 15 

Page 14



3 
 

Introduction  

 
The Personal Social Services Survey of Adult Carers in England 2015 -16 is a statutory survey, 
coordinated by the Health and Social Care Information Centre (www.ic.nhs.uk), which aims to 
collect information about carers’ experiences of social care services and support and will feed into 
the monitoring of the national carers strategy.     
 
It is important for the Department of Health to understand at the national level how well services 
are meeting user and carer needs. The information about services is not intended to be used 
solely to monitor performance through national outcomes measures but should also be used 
locally to inform service delivery and to monitor and develop standards. 
 
 
The carers’ survey contained sections which asked questions: 
 

 About the carer & the person cared for 

 About the needs and experiences of support 

 The impact of caring and quality of life 

 Information & advice quality 

 Arrangement of support and services in the last 12 months 

 About yourself 
 
Methodology 
 
Surveys were posted to 779 eligible carers aged 18 or over who have been assessed or reviewed 
by social services in the last 12 months prior to the sample being extracted. A single reminder was 
sent to those who did not reply to the first questionnaire. 
 
The summary tables in this report were constructed using the number of carers who had 
responded to each question, as the denominator, (as per last report).  
 
Where there was a multiple response question i.e. where respondents could select more than one 
answer, the total percentage will add up to more than 100%. 
 
Data quoted in the summary of results is rounded to nearest whole number, whereas data within 
the report is quoted to one decimal point. 
 
 

Page 15

http://www.ic.nhs.uk/


 

4 
 

Summary of results 

 
About the person you care for (Questions 1-5) 
 

 The highest frequency of ages is 75-84 (31%) and 85+ (29%). 83% of carers live with 
the person they care for. 
 

 Over half of people cared for have a long standing illness (56%), around 37% have 
learning disability or difficulty, and 36% experiencing problems connected with aging 
and approximately 36% experiencing dementia.  
 

 56% of carers were satisfied with the support received from Social Services in the last 
12 months, with 9% of those extremely satisfied. 13% were neither satisfied nor 
dissatisfied and just fewer than 10% were dissatisfied overall. 21% said they hadn’t 
received any support. 

 

 In the last 12 months, 50% of people being cared for used equipment or adaptations to 
their home, 24% used support or services allowing them to take a break from caring for 
more than 24 hours. 

 
About the needs and experiences of support (Question 6) 
 

 In the last 12 months 59% of carers have used information and advice services. Fewer 
carers used support from carers groups (40%), carers training (6%), or employment 
support (3%). 

 
The impact of caring and quality of life (Questions 7-15) 
 

 20% of carers stated that they were able to spend their time doing things they value, 
whereas 65% didn’t have enough time and 16% didn’t do anything they valued with their 
time. 
 

 28% of carers say they have control over their daily life, 59% of carers said they have 
some control over their daily life but not enough with 13% having no control. 

 

 55% of carers felt they looked after themselves in terms of getting enough sleep or 
eating well with 29% not looking after themselves well enough and 16% neglecting 
themselves. 

 

 85% of carers had no worries about personal safety and 15% have some worries. 
  

 Around 34% of carers had as much social contact as they wanted, with 18% feeling 
socially isolated.  

 

 38% feel they have encouragement and support in their caring role. Just over 44% feel 
they have some encouragement but not enough, while 17% have no encouragement 
and support. 

 

Page 16



5 
 

 24% of carers feel they don’t have enough time to care for other people with 44% don’t 
have caring responsibilities for anyone else. 

 

 78% of carers feel tired as an effect of their caring role, with 66% reporting disturbed 
sleep and 60% commenting on experiencing a general feeling of stress. 

 

 41% had experienced financial difficulties to some extent through their caring duties.  
 
  

Information & advice quality (Questions 16, 17) 
 

 In the last 12 months 29% of carers have not sought information and advice. 53% found 
it easy to find with 19% finding it difficult to find. 
 

 Of the information and advice received by carers 67% found it helpful, while only 8% 
found it unhelpful.  

 
Arrangement of support and services in the last 12 months (Question 18) 
 

 In the last 12 months 28% of carers always felt involved in discussions about the 

support provided to the person they care for. 

About yourself (Questions 19-29) 

 65% of carers describe themselves as retired, with 18% of carers not in paid 

employment because of their caring duties. 

 21% of carers have been looking after the person they care for over 5 years (but less 

than 10 years); however 19% have had caring responsibilities for over 20 years.  

 51% of carers spend over 100 hours per week looking after the person they care for. 

 Carers performed a variety of tasks for the person they cared for, from personal care 

(68%) to helping deal with care services (82%) and giving medicines (81%). 

 27% of carers have themselves got a physical impairment or disability, 21% have sight 

or hearing loss. 

Optional Questions for Torbay (Questions 30, 31) 

 86% of carers have told their GP that they are a carer (14% have not), 37% of carers felt 

telling their GP made any difference. 

 

 

 

 

  
  

Page 17



6 
 

Section 1: About the person you care for 

 
The questions in this section ask about the person being cared for and the carers experiences of 
support and services. 
 

 
1 How old is the person you care for:- 
 

Age group Number Percent 

 18-24 9 2.5% 

 25-34 26 7.2% 

 35-44 22 6.1% 

 45-54 25 6.9% 

 55-64 17 4.6% 

 65-74 50 13.9% 

 75-84 110 30.3% 

 85+ 103 28.5% 

Total 362 100% 

No response 12  

 
The highest  
proportion of people being cared for are over retirement age with over 30% falling in the 75-
84 age bracket. A further 29% are in the 85+ bracket. 

 
 
2 Does the person you care for have any of the following illness?  

 
Note: This is multiple response question where respondents were able to select more than 
one answer so totals will add up to more than 100%. 

 

 Number Percent 

A physical disability 128 34.2% 

Long standing illness 208 55.6% 

Problems connected to ageing  136 36.4% 

Sight or hearing loss 63 16.8% 

Dementia 133 35.6% 

A mental health problem 55 14.7% 

A learning disability or difficulty 140 37.4% 

Terminal illness 15 4.0% 

Alcohol or drug dependency 5 1.3% 

 
Most people being cared for experience a long standing illness (56%) with 37% experience 
a learning disability or difficulty. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 18



7 
 

3  Where does the person you care for usually live? 
 

 Number Percent 

With me 302 82.5% 

Somewhere else 64 17.5% 

Total 366 100% 

No response 8  

 
 83% of people being cared for live with their carer.                 
 
 
4 Overall, how satisfied or dissatisfied are you with the support or services you and 

the person you care for have received from Social Services in the last 12 months? 
 

 Number Percent 

I am extremely satisfied 34 9.2% 

I am very satisfied 76 20.6% 

I am quite satisfied 95 25.7% 

I am neither satisfied or dissatisfied 49 13.3% 

I am quite dissatisfied 16 4.3% 

I am very dissatisfied 8 2.2% 

I am extremely dissatisfied 12 3.3% 

We haven’t received any support in last 12mths 79 21.4% 

Total 369 100% 

No response 5 1. 

 
 

26% of carers are ‘quite satisfied’ with the services provided to them in the past 12 months. 
Overall nearly 56% were satisfied. 

 
  

Page 19



8 
 

5 Has the person you care for used any of the support or services listed in the last 12 
months?  

They may be provided by different organisations, such as a voluntary organisation, a 
private agency or Social Services.  

Note: Numbers listed are where carers have selected ‘Yes’ they have used the service. 

 Number Percent 

Support or services allowing you to take a break from caring 
at short notice or in an emergency 

57 15.2% 

Support or services allowing you to take a break from caring 
for more than 24 hours 

89 23.8% 

Support or services to allow you to have a rest from caring for 
between 1 and 24 hours (e.g. a sitting service) 

74 19.8% 

Personal assistant 25 6.7% 

Home care/home help 86 23.0% 

Day centre or day activities 85 22.7% 

Lunch club 11 2.9% 

Meals services 13 3.5% 

Equipment or adaption to their home (such as a wheelchair or 
handrails) 

188 50.3% 

Lifeline Alarm 87 23.3% 

Permanently in residential care home 31 8.3% 

 

50% of people being cared for have used equipment or adaptations in their home, 23% 

have used home care services and 23% have used a lifeline alarm. Less people used lunch 

clubs (3%) and meal services (4%). 

Section 2: About your needs and experiences of support 

 

This section asked about the support and services used as a carer. They may be arranged by the 
carer or by Social Services. They may be provided by a voluntary organisation, a private agency 
or Social Services. 
 
6  Have you used any of the support or services listed below, to help you as a carer 

over the last 12 months? 

They may be provided by different organisations, such as a voluntary organisation, a 
private agency or Social Services.  Please do not include any unpaid help from family 
and friends. 

 Number  Percent 

Information & advice 221 59.1% 

Support from carers groups or someone to talk to in confidence 149 39.8% 

Training for carers 23 6.1% 

Support to keep you in employment 12 3.2% 

 

Page 20



9 
 

Nearly 60% of carers have accessed information and advice services in the last 12 months. 
Just under 40% sought support from carers groups or individuals. Fewer carers (6%) 
attended training or received support for employment (3%). 

Section 3: The impact of caring and your quality of life 

 
Some of the questions in this section look at the impact of caring on particular aspects of the 
carers life, while others ask about the quality of different parts of the carers life more generally. 

7 Which of the following statements best describes how you spend your time? When 
you are thinking about what you do with your time, please include anything you 
value or enjoy, including formal employment, voluntary or unpaid work, caring for 
others and leisure activities.  

 Number Percent 

I am able to spend my time as I want, doing things I value or enjoy 72 19.9% 

I do some of the things I value or enjoy with my time but not enough 234 64.6% 

I don't do anything I value or enjoy with my time 56 15.5% 

Total 362 100% 

No response 12  

 

65% of carers feel they do not have enough time to do things they enjoy with 19% able to 
spend as much time as they want doing things they value. 

 

8 Which of the following statements best describes how much control you have over 
your daily life? 

 

 Number Percent 

I have as much control over my daily life as I want 101 27.6% 

I have some control over my daily life but not enough 216 59.0% 

I have no control over my daily life 49 13.4% 

Total 366 100% 

No response 8  

 
28% of carers have as much control over their daily life as they want whereas 59% of 
carers feel they have some control but not enough. Just over 13% feel they have no control 
over their daily life. 

  

Page 21



10 
 

9 Thinking about how much time you have to look after yourself – in terms of getting 
enough sleep or eating well – which statement best describes your present 
situation? 

 

 Number Percent 

I look after myself 199 54.7% 

Sometimes I can’t look after myself well enough 107 29.4% 

I feel I am neglecting myself 58 15.9% 

Total 364 100% 

No response 10  

 
55% of carers feel they look after themselves, in terms of adequate sleep and eating well 
whereas 29% of carers feel they can’t look after themselves well enough. 16% feel they are 
neglecting themselves. 

 
 
10 Thinking about your personal safety, which of the statements best describes your 

present situation? 
 

 Number Percent 

I have no worries about my personal safety 315 85.4% 

I have some worries about my personal safety 51 13.8% 

I am extremely worried about my personal safety  3 0.8% 

Total 369 100% 

No response 5  

 
85% of carers have no worries about their personal safety, whereas 15% of carers have 
some worries.  

 
 
11 Thinking about how much social contact you’ve had with people you like, which of 

the following statements best describes your social situation? 
 

 Number Percent 

I have as much social contact as I want with the people I like 127 34.4% 

I have some social contact with people but not enough 174 47.2% 

I have little social contact with people and feel socially isolated 68 18.4% 

Total 369 100% 

No response 5  

 
34% of carers have as much social contact as they want, whereas 47% of carers don’t have 
enough social contact. 18% of carers feel socially isolated. 

  

Page 22



11 
 

12 Thinking about encouragement and support in your caring role, which of the 
following statements best describes your present situation? 

 

 Number Percent 

I feel I have encouragement and support 138 38.4% 

I feel I have some encouragement & support but not enough 159 44.3% 

I feel I have no encouragement & support 62 17.3% 

Total 359 100% 

No response 15  

 

38% of carers feel they have encouragement and support, whereas 44% of carers feel that 
they don’t have enough. 17% of carers feel that they have no encouragement & support. 
 

13 Thinking about the other people you have caring responsibilities for, which of the 
following best describes your current situation? Please exclude the person you 
spend most time helping. 

 Number Percent 

I always have enough time to care for them 85 23.9% 

I sometimes have enough time to care for them 98 27.5% 

I never have enough time to care for them 17 4.8% 

I don't have caring responsibilities for anyone else 156 43.8% 

Total 356 100% 

 18  

 
24% of carers felt they have enough time to care for other people. 44% don’t have caring 
responsibilities for anyone else. 

14 In the last 12 months, has your health been affected by your caring role in any of the 
ways listed below? 

 Number Percent 

Feeling tired 293 78.3% 

Feeling depressed 155 41.4% 

Loss of appetite 52 13.9% 

Disturbed sleep 246 65.8% 

General feeling of stress 226 60.4% 

Physical strain (e.g. back) 118 31.6% 

Short tempered/irritable 169 45.2% 

Had to see own GP 113 30.2% 

Developed my own health conditions 94 25.1% 

Made an existing condition worse 78 20.9% 

Other 16 4.3% 

No, none of these 20 5.3% 

 

78% of carers feel tired as an effect of their caring role, with 66% reporting disturbed sleep 
and 60% commenting on experiencing a general feeling of stress. 

 

Page 23



12 
 

15 In the last 12 months, has caring caused you any financial difficulties? 

 Number Percent 

No, not at all 213 59.3% 

Yes, to some extent 111 30.9% 

Yes, a lot 35 9.7% 

Total 359 100% 

No response 15  

 
 41% had experienced financial difficulties to some extent through their caring duties.  

Section 4: Information and advice quality 

 

The next questions ask for the carers views about the quality of information and advice. 

 
16 In the last 12 months, have you found it easy or difficult to find information and 

advice about support, services or benefits? Please include information and advice 
from different sources, such as voluntary organisations and private agencies as well 
as Social Services. 

 Number Percent 

Very easy to find 64 17.5% 

Fairly easy to find 128 35.1% 

Fairly difficult to find 47 12.9% 

Very difficult to find 22 6.0% 

I have not tried to find information or advice in the last 12 months 104 28.5% 

Total 365 100% 

No response 9  

 

53% of carers found it easy to access information about support, services or benefits, 19% 
finding it difficult although 29% of carers haven’t tried to find information or advice in the last 
12 months. 

  
  

Page 24



13 
 

 
If you found it difficult to find information and advice, please tell us why and what we 
can do to make it easier for you:  
 

 
Comments made by respondents 

Difficulty 
understanding 

information 

“Because there are so many different areas that can help - different 

phone numbers - different names - it would be so much better if they 

were all under one roof - one phone number so they can direct to the 

area or areas that could help.” 

“Non computer literate” 

Difficult to find 
information 

“Because there are so many different areas that can help - different 

phone numbers - different names - it would be so much better if they 

were all under one roof - one phone number so they can direct to the 

area or areas that could help.” 

“It took a long time before I spoke to the right people who could offer 

help, support and advice. Lots of phone calls to wrong services or given 

out of date advice. Torbay Carers put me on the right track. More 

information in GP surgeries/ health centres.” 

“Most information is on the internet which I can't use. Need info more 

local for people to find and read.” 

Difficulty making 
contact with 

services 
 

“Carers group at GP Surgery not helpful at all. I only started reviewing 

support and information when my dad was diagnosed with dementia. 

Chadwell have been really helpful.” 

“With working full time I found that the places I needed to go were closed 

and I try to keep Saturday free for my family and to not have to use this 

day for anything but me and my family.” 

“Need a one stop shop, advice on computer, place etc. carers centre. 

Treat carer as a whole. A lot of support helps unemployed cares because 

of courses being all held in the day time they are all held in the day time, 

they are not accessible to workers. Support cover support workers need 

more. Maybe the hospitals on discharge into the community give out 

more contact info asap.” 

 

  

Page 25



14 
 

17 In the last 12 months, how helpful has the information and advice you have received 
been? Please include information and advice from different organisations, such as 
voluntary organisations and private agencies as well as Social Services. 

 

 Number Percent 

Very helpful 103 28.7% 

Quite helpful 136 37.9% 

Quite unhelpful 20 5.6% 

Very unhelpful 7 1.9% 

I have not received any information or advice in the last 12 months 93 25.9% 

Total 359 100% 

No response 15  

 

Of the information and advice received by carers 67% found it helpful, while only 8% found 
it unhelpful.  

 

If you found the information and advice you received unhelpful, please tell us why 
and what we can do to make it more helpful for you 

 
Comments made by respondents 

Need for clear 
information  

“1. Lack of information of cost of respite care under new arrangements  

2. No communication regarding increase of respite care from 21 to 28 

days.” 

“Very difficult to understand. Does not cover all the aspects of caring. 

Very condescending.” 

 
Hard to make 
contact with 

the right 
person/service 

“Information can be quite vague unless you get through the proper 

department and that takes times and patience. I also find that different 

departments play different roles within the complex "holistic" support 

given, yet there is little or no feedback to the main carer and little or no 

connection between departments. So each role stands alone when in 

fact they should be connected.” 

“Information mainly concentrates on physical care not emotional support 

which a lot of elderly people needing help require ie feeling of loneliness, 

being cut off from the outside world. Also people caring all day do not 

want to attend carers meetings because they just want to be at home 

relaxing.” 

Problems 
receiving 

information 

“The only help or advice we have received was when Bay Tree was 

closing until then nothing.” 

“I have accessed the newsletter that has been emailed to me. Not sure 

what else I can do.” 

 

  

Page 26



15 
 

Section 5: Arrangement of support and services in the last 12 months 

 

The next question is about organising the support and services for you and the person you care 
for. 

18 In the last 12 months, do you feel you have been involved or consulted as much as 
you wanted to be, in discussions about the support or services provided to the 
person you care for? 

 

 Number Percent 

There have been no discussions that I am aware of, in the last 12 
months 

110 30.2% 

I have always felt involved or consulted 103 28.3% 

I usually felt involved or consulted 79 21.7% 

I sometimes felt involved or consulted 51 14.0% 

I never felt involved or consulted 21 5.8% 

Total 364 100% 

No response 10  

 

In the last 12 months 28% of carers always felt involved in discussions about the support 

provided to the person they care for. 

Section 6: About yourself  

 

The next group of questions helps us to get a better picture of the types of carers who took part in 
this survey. 

 

19 In addition to your caring role, please tell us which of the following also applies to 
you?   

Note: This is multiple response question where respondents can select more than one 
answer so totals will add up to more than 100%. 

 

 Number Percent 

Retired 243 65.0% 

Employed full-time 18 4.8% 

Employed part time (working 30 hrs or less) 30 8.0% 

Self employed full time 4 1.1% 

Self employed part time 9 2.4% 

Not in paid work 78 20.9% 

Doing voluntary work 12 3.2% 

Other  30 8.0% 

 

 65% of carers are retired, with 16% are working.  

Page 27



16 
 

20 Thinking about combining paid work and caring, which of the following statements 
best describes your current situation? 

 

 Number Percent 

I am not in paid employment because of my caring responsibilities 62 18.2% 

I am not in paid employment for other reasons (e.g. retired) 220 64.7% 

I am in paid employment and I feel supported by my employer 27 7.9% 

I am in paid employment but I don’t feel supported by my employer 9 2.6% 

I do not need any support from my employer to combine my work 
and my caring responsibilities  

10 2.9% 

I am self- employed and I am able to balance my work and caring 
responsibilities 

7 2.1% 

I am self employed but I am unable to balance my work and caring 
responsibilities  

5 1.5% 

Total 340 100% 

No response 34  

 

18% of carers are currently not in work because of their caring responsibilities. 

 

21 About how long have you been looking after or helping the person you care for? 

 

 Number Percent 

Less than 6 months  1 0.3% 

Over 6 months but less than a year 12 3.3% 

Over 1 year but less than 3 years 71 19.2% 

Over 3 years but less than 5 years 65 17.6% 

Over 5 years but less than 10 years 79 21.4% 

Over 10 years but less than 15 years 36 9.8% 

Over 15 years but less than 20 years 34 9.2% 

20 years or more 71 19.2% 

Total 369 100% 

No response  5  

 

21% of carers have been looking after the person they care for over 5 years (but less 

than 10 years), however 19% have had caring responsibilities for over 20 years.  

  

Page 28



17 
 

22 About how long do you spend each week looking after or helping the person you 
care for? 

 Number Percent 

0-9 hours per week 8 2.2% 

10-19 hours per week 16 4.4% 

20-34 hours per week 19 5.2% 

35-49 hours per week 26 7.1% 

50-74 hours per week 27 7.4% 

75-99 hours per week 32 8.8% 

100 or more hours per week 187 51.4% 

Varies - under 20 hours per week 18 4.9% 

Varies - 20 hours or more per week 27 7.4% 

Other  4 1.1% 

Total 364 100% 

No response 10  

 

51% of carers spend over 100 hours per week looking after the person they care for. 

 

23 Over the last 12 months, what kinds of things did you usually do for the person you 
care for?   

Note: This is multiple response question where respondents can select more than one 
answer so totals will add up to more than 100%. 

 

 Number Percent 

Personal care? 256 68.4% 

Physical help? 232 62.0% 

Helping with dealing with care services and benefits? 306 81.8% 

Helping with paperwork or financial matters? 309 82.6% 

Other practical help? 347 92.8% 

Keeping him/her company? 280 74.9% 

Taking him/her out? 282 75.4% 

Giving Medicines? 302 80.7% 

Keeping an eye on him/her to see he/she is all right? 354 94.7% 

Giving emotional support? 311 83.2% 

Other help? 48 12.8% 

 

Carers performed a variety of tasks for the person they cared for, from personal care (68%) 

to helping deal with care services (82%) and giving medicines (81%). 

 

  

Page 29



18 
 

24 Do you have any of the following?  

Note: This is multiple response question where respondents can select more than one 
answer so totals will add up to more than 100%. 

 

 Number Percent 

A physical impairment or disability 100 26.7% 

Sight or hearing loss 76 20.6% 

A mental health problem or illness 38 10.2% 

A learning disability or difficulty 9 2.4% 

A long-standing illness 109 29.1% 

Other  44 11.8% 

None of the above 108 28.9% 

 

 29% of carers reported to having a long standing illness. 

 
25 How many children aged 18 or under do you have parental responsibility for? 

 

 Number Percent 

0 170 91.4% 

1 8 4.3% 

2 6 3.2% 

3 1 0.5% 

4 1 0.5% 

Total 186 100% 

No response 188  

 

  16 carers in total who responded to the question have children aged 18 or under. 

26 How old are you? 

 Number Percent 

Below 18 1 0.3% 

18-24 5 1.4% 

25-34 4 1.1% 

35-44 10 2.8% 

45-54 35 9.9% 

55-64 76 21.4% 

65-74 108 30.4% 

75-84 89 25.1% 

85+ 27 7.6% 

Total 355 100% 

No response 19  

 

 85% of carers are aged between 55 years and 85 years+. 

Page 30



19 
 

27 Are you male or female? 

 

 Number Percent 

Male 113 30.4% 

Female 259 69.6% 

Total 372 100% 

No response 2  

 

  70% of carers are female. 

 

28 To which of these groups do you consider you belong? 

 Number Percent 

English / Welsh / Scottish / Northern Irish / British 359 97.3% 

Irish  3 0.8% 

Gypsy or Irish Traveller 0 0.0% 

Any other White background 4 1.1% 

White and Black Caribbean 0 0.0% 

White and Black African 0 0.0% 

White and Asian 0 0.0% 

Any other Mixed / Multiple background 0 0.0% 

Indian 1 0.3% 

Pakistani 0 0.0% 

Bangladeshi 0 0.0% 

Chinese 0 0.0% 

Any other Asian background 1 0.3% 

African 0 0.0% 

Caribbean 0 0.0% 

Any other Black / African / Caribbean background 0 0.0% 

Arab 0 0.0% 

Any other background 1 0.3% 

Total 369 100% 

No response 5 1. 

 

 97% of carers are of English / Welsh / Scottish / Northern Irish / British origin. 

  

Page 31



20 
 

29 Did someone help you to complete the questionnaire? 

 

 Number Percent 

Yes 26 7.0% 

No 343 93.0% 

Total 369 100% 

No response 5  

 
 7% of carers had someone to help them complete the questionnaire. 

 

30 Have you told your GP that are a carer? (Optional question for Torbay) 
 

 Number Percent 

Yes 320 85.6% 

No 50 13.5% 

Total 370 100% 

No response 4  

 

86% of carers have told their GP’s that they are a carer.  

 

31 Did telling your GP you were a carer make any difference (Optional question for 
Torbay) 

 

 Number Percent 

Yes 116 36.6% 

No 201 63.4% 

Total 317 100% 

No response 57  

 

37% of carers felt that telling their GP they were a carer made any difference. 
 

32 If further research were to take place, would you be happy for us to contact you? 

 

 Number Percent 

Yes 184 54.1% 

No 156 45.9% 

Total 340 100% 

No response 34  

 

 

Page 32


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes
	26 Private Fostering and Adoption Overview Report
	27 Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) Strategy 2016-20

	5 Market Place Positioning
	6 Personal Social Services Survey of Adult Carers in England 2015-16
	Carer Appendix


